
City Council Minutes                         1 of 8 April 15, 2015 

Regular Meeting  
April 15, 2015  
Martinez, CA  

 
CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - ROLL CALL  
 
Mayor Rob Schroder called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers.  
 
PRESENT: AnaMarie Avila Farias, Councilmember, Lara DeLaney, Councilmember, Debbie

McKillop, Councilmember, Mark Ross, Vice Mayor, and Rob Schroder, Mayor. 
EXCUSED: None. 
ABSENT: None. 
 
PRESENTATION(S)  
 
A. Proclamation declaring April 2015 as "Sexual Assault Awareness Month".
 
Mayor Schroder, on behalf of the City Council, read the proclamation.  
 
B. Presentation by Union Pacific Railroad (Operations, Maintenance, Infrastructure and

Safety).  
 
Francisco Castillo, Director of Corporate Relations and Media of Union Pacific Railroad, spoke 
on the history of Union Pacific (UP); its ports of access, border crossings, and eastern gateways; 
its routes and uses in California and Martinez; revenue generated by different freight categories; 
and environmental benefits of railroads. He explained the reasoning behind the transport of crude 
oil, and outlined statistics on injuries and derailments. Mr. Castillo reviewed UP's track and 
bridge inspection program, signal replacement programs and safety technology, including its 
Rail Detector System. Mr. Castillo briefly explained the Hazardous Material Management and 
Preparedness Plan, including response plans and training. 
 
Councilmember DeLaney thanked Mr. Castillo for his presentation. She asked what UP can do to 
reduce noise. Mr. Castillo agreed it is a concern. He noted the use of the train horn is required for 
safety reasons; and UP is investigating how technology improvements can help mitigate noise. 
 
Vice Mayor Ross asked if the braking systems could be extended throughout the entire train, and 
Mr. Castillo stated he would look into it. Vice Mayor Ross also asked if he could investigate 
complaints about horns that seem to go on for minutes at a time in the middle of the night. Vice 
Mayor Ross asked if the transport of Bakken crude oil was expected to increase. Mr. Castillo 
stated the oil transported by UP is a different type of crude oil that is not as flammable. 
 
Councilmember Avila Farias thanked Mr. Castillo for the presentation. She asked and staff 
confirmed they were moving forward on the Hazmat training program. She asked about safety at 
the switching yard, and Mr. Castillo stated he was not prepared to respond to those specific 
questions. Councilmember Avila Farias commended UP on its leadership and stated she looked 
forward to hearing regular reports in the future. 
 



City Council Minutes                         2 of 8 April 15, 2015 

Councilmember McKillop asked if the results of the safety inspections were made public, and 
Mr. Castillo stated UP could provide information to the City on ongoing inspections and 
maintenance. Councilmember McKillop asked about the implementation of Positive Train 
Control, and Mr. Castillo stated it is in Phase I of testing in regions of Southern California. He 
agreed to provide information on the implementation process. 
 
Vice Mayor Ross asked if the construction debris on the edge of town could be cleaned up, and 
Mr. Castillo stated UP would address it. 
 
Mayor Schroder thanked Mr. Castillo for the presentation and for UP's willingness to build a 
relationship with the community.   
 
C. Organics Recycling Collection Programs - AB 1826 and AB 1594 (CalRecycle and City 

Staff).  
 
Senior Management Analyst Michael Chandler reviewed the new Organics Recycling program, 
which is the collection of food scraps and food soiled paper, and how the collection would 
function. He introduced JoAnne Jaschke from CalRecycle, who explained the requirements of 
AB 1826 (organics recycling program requirements) and AB 1594 (green waste/alternative daily 
cover recycling requirements), as well as, previous relevant legislation. Mr. Chandler requested 
that the Council authorize staff to begin the process and referred to an action on the Consent 
Calendar. He outlined a timetable including funding, public hearings, education and outreach 
with implementation to begin in January 2016. 

Mayor Schroder asked when the franchise agreement with Republic Services would expire, and 
Mr. Chandler stated it would end in 2023. Mayor Schroder asked about the relationship between 
the two companies. Susan Hurl stated CalRecycle oversees Republic Services, and clarified this 
action will not affect the franchise agreement. 
 
Vice Mayor Ross stated yard and food waste would be picked up once a week when the program 
begins. 
 
Councilmember DeLaney asked where the waste went after the composting facility in 
Richmond. Ms. Hurl stated it would be sold to residents, and businesses. Mr. Chandler noted that 
home-composting classes and education would also begin. 
 
The Council thanked Mr. Chandler and Ms. Jaschke for the presentation and for their work on 
the program.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT (COMPLETE SPEAKER CARD AND GIVE TO CLERK)  
Reserved only for those requesting to speak on items not listed on the Agenda.  
 
Gary Freitas spoke about telling the truth and treating people like you want to be treated. He 
noted he was tired about the lies being spread in our community and they are wasting time with 
all the nonsense. He commented about the item in the Gazette by Mark Thompson and he felt 
that people pulling their names off the Pine Meadow petition is proof that they were misled.  
 



City Council Minutes                         3 of 8 April 15, 2015 

Pete Dragovich thanked the Council for starting a dialogue with Union Pacific. He noted "Train 
Accidents by type and Major Cause" is a report produced by Federal Rail Administration. United 
Pacific has had an average of about 550 accidents annually in the last few years. He wanted an 
explanation for the 2014 significant uptick in "fire and violent rupture".  
 
Jim Neu spoke on the railroad's braking system. He noted according to the California Geological 
Survey the Concord fault is more active than the Napa fault and a 6.0 quake could happen. 
ABAG has highlighted the Concord fault proximity to the three refineries, rail trestle and other 
sites. He asked whether there has been a seismic retrofit of the Benicia-Martinez rail bridge since 
the rebuild in 1933. The Martinez Environmental Group requested several questions to be 
answered. 
 
Phillip Simmons, Pacheco Blvd. Residents Group, requested more patrol, placement of a camera 
at Cinco de Mayo and the installation of a flashing light showing your speed. 
 
Mark Peters, Pacheco Blvd. Residents Group, has been working with Code Enforcement; 
however, he cannot do much on a half time basis and requested additional funding and staffing 
of Code Enforcement. Mayor Schroder stated the position will be reviewed in the next budget. 
 
Adam Garza, Pacheco Blvd. Residents Group, expressed concern about the crosswalks and 
speeding cars that don't give way to pedestrians. He requested flashing crosswalks especially at 
Martinez Avenue and Bush Street and Pacheco Blvd. 
 
Mark Thompson spoke in support of the Pacheco Blvd. Residents Group, which is a positive 
model. If the City and residents work together, Martinez becomes a better place. 
 
Guy Cooper, Martinez Environmental Group, spoke on Union Pacific derailment percentages. 
He stated there have not been fewer accidents. There have been greater miles traveled, which 
reduces percentages. Mr. Cooper indicated the railroad has fought against improvements and 
reporting.  
 
Charles Davidson stated the rail line will bring Canadian solvent or tar sand through local 
communities and all the way to the San Louis Obispo Phillips 66 refinery. Bakkan is not the only 
dangerous crude-by-rail change coming to California. The flammability of "dilbit" is high.  
 
Mike Benson spoke about the Holiday Highlands Park issue and the amount of weeds and 
garbage hidden behind the fence. The real problem is the foliage that should be cut down.  
 
Mike Alford spoke about the sulfur dioxide, which is a product of refining and spoke about an 
email sent to the Council about him by Kristen Henderson. He intends to serve her with papers.  
 
Bill Nichols commented on a variety of dangerous substances kept in Union Pacific railway cars 
on Union Pacific tracks. He stated there is not adequate security in the yard. Mr. Nichols 
reported BCDC hosted a meeting with Supervisor John Goia on the issue of rising tides in Contra 
Costa County. Missing at the meeting were representatives from the City, refineries and Union 
Pacific.  



City Council Minutes                         4 of 8 April 15, 2015 

Aimee Durfee, Martinez Environmental Group, requested the public be able to participate in 
future presentations by Union Pacific. She spoke generally about the need to reduce our 
dependence on fossil fuels. 
 
Kristin Henderson stated "Welcome to Historic Martinez." The former McDonalds site at 700 
Court Street needs a facelift. The owner should be responsible for the property and it needs to be 
repainted. 
 
Julian Frazer stated that the Council should be embarrassed by the Union Pacific's presentation. 
He was disappointed from the amount of questions asked at the Public Safety Subcommittee 
meeting and their questions were not covered in the presentation, and the length of time it took to 
bring this item back to the public. Further, he stated the Mayor should not be able to sign the 
marina lease, because he is basically responsible for the distress the marina is in today. Once a 
private contractor was allowed to take over the marina, all the negative changes began. 
 
Mayor Schroder clarified the State Department of Boating and Waterways required the City to 
cease operating the Marina and to select a contractor.  
 
CONSENT CALENDAR  
 
A. Motion waiving reading of text of all Resolutions and Ordinances.
 
1. Motion approving City Council Minutes for March 4, 2015. [M.Cabral]  

 
2. Motion approving Check Reconciliation Register dated 04/02/15. [C.Spinella/2.1.1]
 
3. Motion to receive and file the City’s March 31, 2015, Quarterly Cash and Investment

Report. [C. Robinson/2.1.0]  
 
4. Resolution No. 040-15 authorizing the City Manager to begin the process of assessing the

potential rate impacts of implementing an organics recycling collection program in 
Martinez. [M.Chandler/30.07.00]  

 
5. Resolution No. 041-15 requesting the Metropolitan Transportation Commission for the

allocation of Fiscal Year 2015-2016 Transportation Development Act Article 3 Center
Avenue Pedestrian/Bicycle Project funding. [T.Tucker/12.04.43]  

 
On motion by Lara DeLaney, Councilmember, seconded by Mark Ross, Vice Mayor, to approve 
Item #A and Item #1 through #5 of the Consent Calendar. Motion unanimously passed 5 - 0. 
Yes: AnaMarie Avila Farias, Councilmember; Lara DeLaney, Councilmember; Debbie 
McKillop, Councilmember; Mark Ross, Vice Mayor; Rob Schroder, Mayor.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING(S)  
 
CITY MANAGER  
 
6. City Manager Comment(s)/Update(s).
 



City Council Minutes                         5 of 8 April 15, 2015 

CHIEF OF POLICE  
 
7. Chief of Police Comment(s)/Update(s).
 
APPOINTMENTS TO COMMISSIONS AND/OR AGENCIES  
 
CITY COUNCIL  
 
8. Consider a letter authorizing the Mayor to sign a letter opposing Senate Bill 608 "Right to

Rest Act" for the homeless, which allows homeless to sleep on public property.
[E.Ghisletta/41.01.01]  

 
Interim Chief Ghisletta provided the staff report. He explained the bill would make it more 
difficult for the police to enforce disorderly conduct ordinances and more difficult to offer 
services to homeless people. He noted the bill does not provide any funding or services. 
 
Councilmember Avila Farias stated she supported the Chief's recommendation. The League of 
California Cities also unanimously voted to oppose the bill. 

Councilmember DeLaney stated she supported the recommendation to oppose SB 608. She felt 
the letter is well-intended to address possible harassment of the homeless by law enforcement, 
but it also offers protections to homeless people the general public does not have. She noted a 
typo in the letter and requested the letter also note Martinez' police services work with outreach 
to provide other services as well as housing. 

Mayor Schroder opened the Item for public comment. 

Richard Verrilli stated he supported the recommendation and felt these regulations should be 
kept under local jurisdiction. 

Julian Frazer commented on how the downtown was being disruptive during events by the 
homeless. Mr. Frazer noted many residents do not come downtown because they do not feel safe. 
 
Mike Alford stated the police need to be empowered to protect Martinez. 
Seeing no further speakers, Mayor Schroder closed public comment on the Item. 

Vice Mayor Ross agreed these regulations should be kept under local jurisdiction and 
commented on the services and outreach Martinez provides to homeless people. He stated 
homeless people are human beings and need to be shown compassion. The Council should be 
part of the solution and should ensure the homeless outreach program is adequately funded. 
Councilmember DeLaney agreed with these sentiments.  

On motion by Mark Ross, Vice Mayor, seconded by AnaMarie Avila Farias, Councilmember, to 
approve a letter authorizing the Mayor to sign a letter opposing Senate Bill 608 "Right to Rest 
Act" for the homeless, which allows homeless to sleep on public property. Motion unanimously 
passed 5 - 0. Yes: AnaMarie Avila Farias, Councilmember; Lara DeLaney, Councilmember; 
Debbie McKillop, Councilmember; Mark Ross, Vice Mayor; Rob Schroder, Mayor.  

 



City Council Minutes                         6 of 8 April 15, 2015 

9. Motion approving a month-to-month extension to the Agreement for Eric Ghisletta to
provide Interim Chief of Police services and authorizing the Mayor to execute said
Extension. [A.Shear/17.03.02]  

 
Councilmember Lara DeLaney stated she supported the selection, but felt the process for 
appointing Interim Chief Ghisletta as permanent chief is taking too long. 
Mayor Schroder opened the Item for public comment. 

Julian Frazer stated the City should follow the traditional process of allowing current employees 
to apply for open positions before making them available to the public and an open application 
process wastes time and money when there are qualified candidates in the City. He also 
commented on parking on Cascara Canyon Road.  

Mike Alford expressed his support of Interim Chief Ghisletta. He commented on the 
circumstances of Chief Peterson's departure and stated that Councilmember DeLaney had 
supported the open application and interview process in the beginning. 

Mike Benson expressed his support of Interim Chief Ghisletta for his willingness to engage with 
the community. 

Richard Verrilli state Councilmember DeLaney has always been a strong supporter of Interim 
Chief Ghisletta. He added the selection of the Chief of Police should be based on qualifications 
and an open process should be followed. 

Seeing no further speakers, Mayor Schroder closed public comment on the Item.  

On motion by Mark Ross, Vice Mayor, seconded by AnaMarie Avila Farias, Councilmember, to 
approve a month-to-month extension to the Agreement for Eric Ghisletta to provide Interim 
Chief of Police services and authorizing the Mayor to execute said Extension. Motion 
unanimously passed 5 - 0. Yes: AnaMarie Avila Farias, Councilmember; Lara DeLaney, 
Councilmember; Debbie McKillop, Councilmember; Mark Ross, Vice Mayor; Rob Schroder, 
Mayor.  

Taken out of order: 
 
7.  Chief of Police Comments. 
 
Interim Chief Eric Ghisletta stated that next week is National Crime Victims Rights Week. The 
District Attorney gave a presentation to the Board of Supervisors, and they recognized all 
members for victims' rights. Sergeant Dave Mathers of Martinez was selected for the County law 
enforcement representative for his work in Internet Crimes against Children. It is an honor for 
the Department and for Sgt. Mathers. 
 
Tuesday, April 21st will mark the 42nd Anniversary of the death of Officer Tarantino, who was 
killed in the line of duty. In his honor, there will be a flag raising ceremony at 7:00 a.m. in front 
of City Hall.  
 
 
 



City Council Minutes                         7 of 8 April 15, 2015 

10. Council Subcommittee Reports.
 
Mayor Schroder reported he and Vice Mayor Ross met with Gayle Murray, representative for 
BART. She provided an update on future projects, ridership and upgrading aging train cars.  Ms. 
Murray indicated the Contra Costa Transportation Authority is considering raising the tax by 
another half cent in the November 2016 election; and BART wanted to know what it could do 
for Martinez. Vice Mayor Ross suggested a shuttle service from North Concord to Martinez and 
downtown, perhaps starting at the Pacheco Transit Hub off Hwy 680 and Hwy 4, which is 
currently a park and ride facility. Currently there is no bus service from the Hub.  
 
11. City Council Comments. 
 
Councilmember Debbie McKillop thanked the speakers from Union Pacific who spoke tonight 
and looked forward to continued discussion with Union Pacific. 
 
Councilmember AnaMarie Avila Farias asked about the General Plan Update. Assistant City 
Manager Alan Shear noted that beginning in May there will be monthly updates. Councilmember 
Avila Farias acknowledged public works for fixing the sidewalk over by John Swett School. She 
stated that we should be aware of the Martinez Unified School District Board issues and how the 
community rallied together. Lastly, she announced her appointment by Governor Brown and 
thanked the Mayor for his support. 
 
Vice Mayor Mark Ross expressed his congratulations to Councilmember Avila Farias and he 
welcomed the new City Manager. He also responded to Ms. Durfee's comment regarding 
reducing fossil fuel usage. Ultimately, consumers must make the change. 
 
Councilmember Lara DeLaney updated everyone on the continued complaints about local postal 
service. The Postmaster will attend a meeting in May to hear the complaints. The Union has also 
contacted her. Councilmember DeLaney also requested that we schedule another workshop on 
the Enhanced Infrastructure Financing District Subcommittee. 
 
Mayor Rob Schroder thanked Public Works for their work on relaying the bricks downtown. 
Last Saturday there was a Downtown Clean-Up and they did not use any water. He announced 
the Bay Area Beer Festival on Saturday, and there will be a shuttle from Martinez Bart to the 
Festival. Mayor Schroder requested that the meeting be adjourned in memory of Thural Berry, a 
retired City employee.  
 
ADJOURNMENT  
 
Adjourned at 9:12 p.m. in memory of Thural Berry, then to a Closed Session in the City 
Manager's Office, and then to a Regular Council Meeting on May 6, 2015, at 7:00 p.m. in the 
Council Chambers, 525 Henrietta Street, Martinez, California.  
 
CLOSED SESSION (Adjourn to the City Manager’s Office)  
 
 
 
 



City Council Minutes                         8 of 8 April 15, 2015 

A. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL -- ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 
 
Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to California Government Code Section 
54956.9(d)(2): One potential case.  
 
Initiation of litigation pursuant to California Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(4): One 
potential case.  
 
The Council reconvened at 10:04 p.m. in the Council Chambers. Mayor Schroder reported that 
they met with legal counsel, and there was nothing else to report.  
 

Approved by the City Council, 
 

 
Rob Schroder, Mayor 
 
Mercy G. Cabral, Deputy City Clerk – 6/3/15 


